

**PROPOSED REGULATION OF THE CHIROPRACTIC
PHYSICIANS' BOARD OF NEVADA**

**NOTICE OF WORKSHOP TO SOLICIT COMMENTS ON A REGULATION
and
NOTICE OF INTENT TO ACT UPON A REGULATION**

**Notice of Workshop and Public Comment Hearing for the Amendment of Regulations
of the Chiropractic Physicians' Board of Nevada**

The Chiropractic Physicians' Board of Nevada will hold a Public Workshop and Public Comment Hearing beginning at **9:00 AM on Friday, May 30, 2008, at the Grant Sawyer State Office Building, Room 4401, 555 E. Washington Avenue, Las Vegas, Nevada.** The Public Comment Hearing will begin immediately following the Public Workshop. The purpose of the workshop and public comment hearing is to receive comments from all interested persons regarding the amendment of regulations that pertain to Chapter 634 of NAC.

1. Need for and Purpose of Proposed Regulation or Amendment

The purpose of this proposed regulation amendment is to implement changes to NRS 634 that were enacted as a result of the 2007 Legislative Session, to add definitions of "Good standing" and "Mobile chiropractic" and a provision for filing of declaratory orders and advisory opinions, to increase license and renewal fees, and to delete regulations requiring Massage Therapists to be certified as Chiropractor's Assistants for Massage and to delete registration of Referral Bureaus.

2. Terms & Substance of the Regulations to be Amended

The full text of the proposed amendment is attached or can also be found at <http://www.nvrespository.state.nv.us/>.

3. Estimated Economic Effect of the Regulation on the Industry and Public

a. Adverse and beneficial effects:

The proposed new provisions for definitions of "Good standing," "Mobile chiropractic," and "Declaratory orders and advisory opinions," and elimination of the Referral Bureau regulations will have no economic effect on the profession or the public.

The proposed increases for license and certificate renewals, and license and examination fees average 20% and are not expected to adversely impact the profession. The proposed increases for reinstating a Chiropractor's Assistant certificate and an inactive DC license are not anticipated to have an adverse affect because of the low rate of reinstatements. The fees have not been increased since 1998.

All Massage Therapists must now be licensed by the State Massage Therapy Board. Deletion of the regulations that require massage therapists who work in a chiropractic practice to be certified by the Chiropractic Board will beneficially impact both professions by eliminating the duplication of application costs as well as reducing paperwork.

b. Immediate and long-term effects.

The license and renewal fee increases are minimal and on a par with other states' fees, and are not expected to have an immediate or long-term effect on the profession or the public.

The immediate and long-term effect of eliminating the requirement for certifying Massage Therapists as Chiropractor's Assistants for Massage is expected to be an increase in the number of Massage Therapists working in chiropractic practices.

4. Statement identifying the methods used by the agency in determining impact on small businesses.

The small business sector is not affected by this regulation change.

5. Estimated cost to the agency of the proposed regulation amendment.

There will be no fiscal impact on the agency from implementation of the proposed new definitions.

The cost of hearing and issuing declaratory orders or advisory opinions will be negligible.

There will be no cost to the agency for increasing the fees, or deletion of the regulations requiring certification of Massage Therapists as Chiropractor's Assistants for Massage and registration of Referral Bureaus.

6. Description of and citation to any other regulations that this proposed amendment overlaps or duplicates.

This proposed regulation amendment does not overlap or duplicate any other federal, state, or local governmental regulations.

7. Citation and description of federal laws that require the proposed regulation amendment.

There are no federal laws that require the proposed regulation amendment.

8. If the regulation includes provisions which are more stringent than a federal regulation that regulates the same activity, a summary of such provisions.

The regulation amendment does not include any provisions which are more stringent than a federal regulation that regulates the same activity.

9. Whether the proposed regulation establishes a new fee or increases an existing fee.

The proposed regulation establishes increases in the following existing fees: examination for a license to practice chiropractic and examination for a certificate as a chiropractor's assistant; issuance of a license to practice chiropractic; biennial renewals of active and inactive licenses to practice chiropractic and certificate as a chiropractor's assistant; and reinstating a certificate as a chiropractor's assistant which has been suspended or revoked and an inactive license to practice chiropractic which has been suspended or revoked. All proposed fee increases are within the cap under NRS 634.135.

Persons wishing to comment upon the proposed action of the Chiropractic Physicians' Board of Nevada may appear at the scheduled workshop and public comment hearing or may address their comments, data, views or arguments in written form to:

Chiropractic Physicians Board of Nevada
4600 Kietzke Lane, Suite Mw245
Reno, NV 89502
775-688-1921

Written submissions must be received by the Chiropractic Physicians' Board on or before **May 21, 2008**. If no person who is directly affected by the proposed action appears to request time to make an oral presentation, the Chiropractic Physicians' Board may proceed immediately to act upon any written submissions.

A copy of this notice and the regulation to be amended will be on file at the Nevada State Library and Archives, 100 Stewart Street, Carson city, Nevada, for inspection by members of the public during business hours. Additional copies of the notice and the regulation to be amended will be available at the Chiropractic Physicians' Board of Nevada, 4600 Kietzke Lane, Suite M245, Reno, Nevada 89502, and in all counties in which an office of the agency is not maintained, at the main public library, for inspection and copying by members of the public during business hours. This notice and the text of the proposed regulation are also available in the State of Nevada Register of Administrative Regulations, which is prepared and published monthly by the Legislative Counsel Bureau pursuant to NRS 233B.0653 and on the Internet at <http://www.leg.state.nv.us>. Copies of this notice and the proposed regulation will also be mailed to members of the public upon request. A reasonable fee may be charged for copies if it is deemed necessary. This does not apply to a public body subject to the Open Meeting Law.

Upon adoption of any regulation, the agency, if requested to do so by an interested person, either before adoption or within 30 days thereafter, will issue a concise statement of the principal reasons for and against its adoption or incorporate therein its reason for overruling the consideration urged against its adoption (NRS 233B.064(2)).

This Notice of Workshop and Public Comment Hearing has been sent to all persons on the agency's mailing list for administrative regulations and has been posted at the following locations:

- Capitol Building, 101 N. Carson Street, Carson City, Nevada
- Legislative Building, 401 N. Carson Street, Carson City, Nevada
- Nevada State Library and Archives, 100 Stewart Street, Carson City, Nevada
- The Main Branches of the Public Libraries in the following counties in which an office of the agency is not maintained:

Battle Mountain Branch Library (Lander County)
625 Broad Street, Battle Mountain, Nevada 89820-1920

Churchill County Library
553 South Maine Street, Fallon, Nevada 89406-3306

Douglas County Library
1625 Library Lane, Minden, Nevada 89423-4420

Elko County Library
720 Court Street, Elko, Nevada 89801-3331

Eureka Branch Library
10190 Monroe Street, Eureka, Nevada

Goldfield Public Library/Esmeralda County
Fourth & Crook Street, Goldfield, Nevada

Humboldt County Library
85 East 5th Street, Winnemucca, Nevada 89445-3010

Lincoln County Library
93 Main Street, Pioche, Nevada 89043

Lyon County Library
20 Nevin Way, Yerington, Nevada 89447-2327

Mineral County Library
First & A Streets, Hawthorne, Nevada

Pershing County Library
1125 Central Avenue, Lovelock, Nevada

Storey County Library
95 South R Street, Virginia City, Nevada

**PROPOSED REGULATION OF THE CHIROPRACTIC
PHYSICIANS' BOARD OF NEVADA**

APPROVED PROPOSED NEXT REGULATORY CHANGES

Explanation: Bolded *italicized* wording is NEW; bracketed ~~---~~ wording is to be omitted.

ADDITIONS:

Add new provision: *“Good standing” defined. (NRS 634.080) “Good standing” means that a license is not restricted by revocation, suspension or probation, or otherwise encumbered as specified by an order of the Board.*

Add new provision: *“Mobile Chiropractic” defined. “Mobile chiropractic” means a self-contained, self-supporting, enclosed mobile unit where one or more persons engage in the practice of chiropractic at multiple locations including, but not limited to, within the mobile unit or at or in a patient’s home, business, or hotel/motel room.*

Add new provision: *Declaratory orders and advisory opinions. (NRS 634.030, NRS 233B.120)*

1. A petition for a declaratory order or advisory opinion may be filed only by a holder of or applicant for a license issued by this Board.

2. The original and 10 copies of the petition must be filed with the Board not less than 10 days before its next regularly scheduled meeting. The petition must be submitted to the Board at that meeting. Within 30 days thereafter, the Board will issue its declaratory order or advisory opinion.

CHANGES:

NAC 634.112 “Ancillary services” defined. (NRS 634.030) “Ancillary services” means services related to the practice of chiropractic that a chiropractor’s assistant ~~for-chiropractor’s assistant for massage~~ is authorized to perform under the terms of the certificate issued to him by the Board. The term does not include acts that a chiropractor’s assistant ~~for-chiropractor’s assistant for massage~~ is prohibited from performing pursuant to NAC 634.460.

NAC 634.116 “Certificate” defined. (NRS 634.030) “Certificate” means a current certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant ~~for-chiropractor’s assistant for massage~~.

NAC 634.200 Amount; refunds. (NRS 634.030, 634.115, 634.135)

1. The Board will charge and collect the following fees:

For an application for a license to practice chiropractic..... \$200.00

For an examination for a license to practice chiropractic.....~~100.00~~ **125.00**

For an application for, and the issuance of, a certificate as a
chiropractor’s assistant ~~for-chiropractor’s assistant for massage~~..... 100.00

For an application for a temporary license to practice chiropractic pursuant to NRS 634.115	50.00
For an examination for a certificate as a chiropractor's assistant for chiropractor's assistant for massage	[50.00] 60.00
For the issuance of a license to practice chiropractic.....	[200.00] 225.00
For the issuance of a temporary license to practice chiropractic pursuant to NRS 634.115.....	50.00
For an [annual] <i>biennial</i> renewal of an active license to practice chiropractic.....	[300.00] 700.00
For the [annual] <i>biennial</i> renewal of an inactive license to practice chiropractic.....	[100.00] 250.00
For the [annual] <i>biennial</i> renewal of a certificate as a chiropractor's assistant for chiropractor's assistant for massage	[50.00] 120.00
For the restoration to active status of an inactive license to practice chiropractic.....	300.00
For reinstating a license to practice chiropractic which has been suspended or revoked.....	500.00
For reinstating a certificate as a chiropractor's assistant for —chiropractor's assistant for massage which has been suspended or revoked	[35.00] 70.00
For reinstating an inactive license to practice chiropractic which has been suspended or revoked	[100.00] 200.00
For a review of any subject on the examination.....	25.00
For the issuance of a duplicate license or certificate or for changing the name on a license or certificate.....	35.00
For written [certification] <i>verification</i> of licensure <i>or issuance of a certificate of good standing</i>	25.00
For providing a list of persons who are licensed to practice chiropractic to a person who is not licensed to practice chiropractic.....	25.00
For providing a list of persons who were licensed to practice chiropractic following the most recent examination of the Board to a person who is not licensed to practice chiropractic.....	10.00
For a set of mailing labels containing the names and addresses of the persons who are licensed to practice chiropractic in this State.....	35.00
For a check which is made payable to the Board that is dishonored upon presentation for payment.....	25.00
For providing a copy of the statutes, regulations and other rules governing the practice of chiropractic in this State.....	25.00
For each page of a list of continuing education courses which have been approved by the Board.....	0.50

- For a review by the Board of a course offered by a chiropractic school or college or a course of continuing education in chiropractic..... 25.00.
2. The fees set forth in this section are not refundable.

NAC 634.320 Authorized persons in waiting area; conduct of applicant. (NRS 634.030) During the examination of applicants for licensing as chiropractic physicians or for certification as chiropractor's assistants ~~for chiropractor's assistants for massage~~, only members of the Board, testing consultants, examination proctors, applicants and persons requested by the Board will be allowed in the waiting area for applicants or in the room in which the examination is given. An applicant may not:

1. Communicate with any person while he is in the waiting area, halls or restrooms;
2. Leave the waiting area without the permission of a member of the Board, a testing consultant or an examination proctor; or
3. Bring any written or recorded material relating to the practice of chiropractic into the examination facility.

NAC 634.348 Performance of ancillary services ~~other than massage~~. (NRS 634.030, 634.125)

1. A person who desires to perform ancillary services ~~other than massage~~ must obtain a certificate as a chiropractor's assistant.

2. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 3, a person who holds a certificate as a chiropractor's assistant may perform ancillary services ~~other than massage~~, including, without limitation:

- (a) Administering to patients by means of physiotherapeutic equipment;
- (b) Taking and developing X rays;
- (c) Assisting with the education of a patient concerning his health;
- (d) Assisting a patient with exercise or rehabilitation activities;
- (e) Taking the history of the health of a patient; and
- (f) Assisting the supervising licensee with an examination of a patient.

~~[3. A person who holds a certificate as a chiropractor's assistant may not perform the ancillary service of massage unless he also holds a certificate as a chiropractor's assistant for massage.]~~

NAC 634.350 Application for certification: Filing; requirements; expiration; waiver of requirements. (NRS 634.030, 634.123)

1. An applicant for a certificate as a chiropractor's assistant ~~for an applicant for a certificate as a chiropractor's assistant for massage~~ must file an application with the Board on a form furnished by the Board and pay the required fee within 15 days after the date on which the applicant has begun performing duties as a chiropractor's assistant ~~for chiropractor's assistant for massage~~. An applicant who has not begun performing duties as a chiropractor's assistant ~~for chiropractor's assistant for massage~~ may file an application at any time after he has completed his formal training required pursuant to NRS 634.123.

2. The application must set forth:

- (a) The date of the application.
- (b) The applicant's date and place of birth and two personal references based upon 5 years' acquaintance.

(c) The applicant's name, age, social security number, sex and current residence.

(d) If the applicant is applying for:

— ~~(1) A~~ a certificate as a chiropractor's assistant:

~~{(1)}~~ (1) The name and mailing address of the applicant's current employer, if any; and

~~{(2)}~~ (2) If applicable, the date on which he was hired to perform the duties of a chiropractor's assistant.

~~{(2) A certificate as a chiropractor's assistant for massage, the name and mailing address of the applicant's current employer, if any.}~~

(e) Whether or not the applicant has ever applied for certification as a chiropractor's assistant ~~for chiropractor's assistant for massage, as appropriate,~~ in another state. If he has so applied, he must state when and where he applied and the result of that application.

(f) If the applicant has been certified in another state, whether any proceeding to discharge, dismiss or discipline him or other similar proceeding has ever been instituted against him and the disposition of each such proceeding.

3. An application expires after 1 year.

4. For good cause shown, the Board may, at its discretion, waive one or more of the requirements of this section.

NAC 634.355 Certification: Additional requirements; waiver of requirements. (NRS 634.030, 634.123)

1. An applicant for a certificate as a chiropractor's assistant ~~for chiropractor's assistant for massage~~ must, in addition to fulfilling the requirements of NAC 634.350, furnish evidence satisfactory to the Board that he:

(a) Is 18 years of age or older; and

(b) Has received a score of at least 75 percent on an examination administered by the Board on the provisions of NRS and NAC that are related to the practice of chiropractic.

2. In addition to the requirements set forth in subsection 1 and NAC 634.350, an applicant for a certificate as a chiropractor's assistant must furnish evidence satisfactory to the Board that he:

(a) Satisfies one of the following:

(1) Is certified as a chiropractor's assistant by a program for chiropractor's assistants that is approved by the Board; or

(2) Has had 6 months of full-time training and employment as a chiropractor's assistant trainee from a licensee.

(b) Has received a score of at least 75 percent on the examination for certification required pursuant to NAC 634.305.

~~{3. In addition to the requirements set forth in subsection 1 and NAC 634.350, an applicant for a certificate as a chiropractor's assistant for massage must furnish evidence satisfactory to the Board that he has passed:~~

~~—(a) The examination administered by the National Certification Board for Therapeutic Massage and Bodywork and holds a current certificate from that organization; or~~

~~—(b) An examination that the Board deems sufficient.~~

~~4.]~~ 3. Evidence of an applicant's completion of approved training pursuant to subparagraph (2) of paragraph (a) of subsection 2 must consist of a certification by the licensed provider of health care, and the certification must be notarized.

~~{5.}~~ 4. The Board may, at its discretion:

(a) Waive one or more of the requirements of this section for good cause shown.

(b) Upon receipt from an applicant of documentation demonstrating that the applicant has received additional formal training, education or experience, grant the applicant credit toward fulfilling the requirements of subparagraph (2) of paragraph (a) of subsection 2.

NAC 634.360 Employment and training as chiropractor's assistant trainee. (NRS 634.030, 634.123)

1. A person may not be employed and trained for more than ~~30~~ 15 days as a chiropractor's assistant trainee for the purposes of satisfying subparagraph (2) of paragraph (a) of subsection 2 of NAC 634.355 unless the person, within the first ~~30~~ 15 days during which he performs any duties as a chiropractor's assistant trainee, applies to the Board by submitting a form provided by the Board.

2. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 3, an applicant for a certificate as a chiropractor's assistant who completes training pursuant to subparagraph (2) of paragraph (a) of subsection 2 of NAC 634.355 shall, upon the completion of his training:

(a) Apply to the Board to sit for the next scheduled examination; and

(b) Submit the fees required by the Board pursuant to NAC 634.200.

3. For good cause shown, the Board may, at its discretion, extend the training period of a chiropractor's assistant trainee and authorize the trainee to take a later scheduled examination.

NAC 634.366 Requirements to practice chiropractic or provide services relating to chiropractic; report to Board of any other license, certificate or registration as provider of health care. (NRS 634.030)

1. Except as otherwise provided in NAC 634.360, a person may not practice chiropractic or provide services relating to chiropractic to patients unless the person:

(a) Is a licensee;

(b) Holds a valid certificate as a chiropractor's assistant ~~for chiropractor's assistant for massage~~ pursuant to NRS 634.123 and the provisions of this chapter;

(c) Is authorized to perform chiropractic pursuant to NRS 634.105 while waiting to take the Board's examination;

(d) Holds a valid temporary license to practice chiropractic pursuant to NRS 634.115; or

(e) Holds a valid license or certificate as a provider of health care that is issued by an agency of this State pursuant to one or more of the chapters of title 54 of NRS.

2. A licensee shall report to the Board any other license, certificate or registration as a provider of health care he obtains pursuant to a chapter of title 54 of NRS other than chapter 634 of NRS within 15 days after the effective date of the license, certificate or registration.

NAC 634.380 Notification of Board regarding address of legal residence and mailing address. (NRS 634.030)

1. A chiropractic physician ~~or~~ ~~or~~ chiropractor's assistant ~~for chiropractor's assistant for massage~~ who is licensed or certified by the Board shall:

(a) Provide the Board with the address of his current legal residence; and

(b) Notify the Board, in writing, of any change in his legal residence within 15 days after the change.

2. In addition to providing the Board with the address of each office where he practices pursuant to [NRS 634.129](#), and the address of his legal residence, a chiropractic physician ~~or~~ ~~or~~

chiropractor's assistant ~~for chiropractor's assistant for massage~~ may provide the number of a post office box which is to be used as his mailing address.

3. A chiropractic physician shall report to the Board within 15 days that he is practicing mobile chiropractic.

NAC 634.385 Continuing education of licensees. (NRS 634.030, 634.130)

1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 6, the Board may approve or endorse an educational class or a seminar if it is designed to advance the professional skills and knowledge of the chiropractic physicians licensed in this State for the purpose of ensuring an optimum quality of chiropractic health care.

2. The Board may approve or endorse the attendance of licensees at an educational seminar or seminars if:

(a) The syllabus and curriculum of the instructors of the seminar or seminars and the required fee are submitted to the Board;

(b) The seminar or seminars provide instruction in conformity with subsection 3 of NRS 634.130;

(c) The seminar or seminars concern the clinical aspects of a practice or another topic that the Board determines to be in the best interest of the public;

(d) The sponsor of the seminar or seminars ensures that each licensee who requests credit for continuing education to satisfy the requirement set forth in subsection 3 of NRS 634.130 attends at least 50 minutes of each hour of instruction;

(e) The seminar or seminars are sponsored by:

(1) A chiropractic college which has been accredited by:

(I) The Council on Chiropractic Education; or

(II) Another educational entity that has been approved by the Board;

(2) A state chiropractic board or association; or

(3) The American Chiropractic Association, the International Chiropractors Association or the successor of either; and

(f) An original *or copy of a* certificate of attendance at the seminar or seminars is provided directly to the Board by the sponsor or licensee on or before January 1 of each *odd-numbered* year before the issuance of a renewal certificate.

3. The sponsor of the seminar or seminars shall ensure that each licensee attending that seminar is in attendance in a timely manner at the start of each lecture. If the sponsor fails to maintain the proper monitoring procedure, such failure may constitute grounds for the Board to withdraw its approval of a current or future seminar or seminars hosted or arranged by that sponsor.

4. The sponsor of a seminar shall allow any representative of the Board to attend all or part of the seminar in order to monitor the content of the course or lecture and the procedures for taking attendance. A representative who is taking the seminar to satisfy the requirements of subsection 3 of NRS 634.130 shall pay the full registration fee.

5. The sponsor of a seminar which has received the approval of the Board shall report to the Board all changes in the seminar as soon as possible.

6. The Board will not award credit for continuing education to a licensee for an educational class or seminar that is of a nonclinical nature, including, without limitation, an educational class or seminar regarding:

(a) The building or management of a chiropractic practice; or

(b) The billing of insurance.

7. The Board will not award credit for continuing education to an instructor of an educational class or seminar unless the instructor obtained from the Board approval for such credit before teaching the educational class or seminar.

NAC 634.415 Supervision of others by licensee. (NRS 634.030) A licensee who supervises:

1. A chiropractor's assistant;
2. ~~A chiropractor's assistant for massage;~~
- ~~3.]~~ An applicant for a license to practice chiropractic who is authorized to perform chiropractic pursuant to NRS 634.105; or
- ~~4.]~~ **3.** Any other person who is subject to the supervision of the licensee,
shall ensure that the person who is supervised complies with the provisions of this chapter and chapter 634 of NRS, and shall make all decisions relating to the diagnosis, treatment, management and future disposition of a patient.

NAC 634.445 Practice without maintaining professional liability insurance: Written disclosures. (NRS 634.030, 634.1295)

1. Each written disclosure that is posted by a licensee pursuant to paragraph (a) of subsection 1 of NRS 634.1295 must:
 - (a) Be printed in boldface capital letters on paper that is at least 8 1/2 inches by 11 inches in size;
 - (b) Not contain text that is smaller than a 42-point ~~Times New Roman~~ font or less than 1/2 inch in height; and
 - (c) Be in substantially the following form:

IMPORTANT NOTICE TO MY PATIENTS

I, (NAME OF CHIROPRACTOR), DO NOT MAINTAIN
PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE.

2. Each written disclosure that is given to a patient by a licensee pursuant to paragraph (b) of subsection 1 of NRS 634.1295 must:
 - (a) Be printed in boldface letters on paper that is at least 8 1/2 inches by 11 inches in size;
 - (b) Be captioned in capital letters in text that is not smaller than a 28-point ~~Times New Roman~~ font or less than 1/4 inch in height;
 - (c) Not contain text that is smaller than an 18-point ~~Times New Roman~~ font or less than 1/4 inch in height; and
 - (d) Be in substantially the following form:

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF LACK OF PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

I, (name of patient), acknowledge that I am aware that
(name of chiropractor) does not maintain professional liability insurance coverage.

(date)

.....
(signature of patient)

3. A written disclosure described in subsection 2 must be signed by the patient before the licensee provides any chiropractic treatment or care to the patient.

4. After a written disclosure described in subsection 2 is signed by a patient, the licensee shall maintain the written disclosure as a part of the record of the patient.

NAC 634.455 Chiropractor's assistant ~~[and chiropractor's assistant for massage]~~: Display of certificate. (NRS 634.030)

1. A chiropractor's assistant ~~[or chiropractor's assistant for massage]~~ shall display his certificate at the place of practice of the supervising licensee.

2. If the supervising licensee practices at more than one location and the chiropractor's assistant ~~[or chiropractor's assistant for massage]~~ works at more than one of those locations, the chiropractor's assistant ~~[or chiropractor's assistant for massage]~~ shall:

(a) Display his certificate at the office where he performs the majority of his work; and

(b) Display a duplicate certificate, which the chiropractor's assistant ~~[or chiropractor's assistant for massage]~~ shall obtain from the Board, at each of the other locations where he works.

3. A chiropractor's assistant ~~[or chiropractor's assistant for massage]~~ shall not display his certificate except as otherwise provided in this section.

NAC 634.460 Chiropractor's assistant~~[, chiropractor's assistant for massage]~~ and chiropractor's assistant trainee: Prohibited acts. (NRS 634.030) A chiropractor's assistant~~[, chiropractor's assistant for massage]~~ or chiropractor's assistant trainee may not:

1. Diagnose a patient or establish a prognosis.
2. Prescribe a program of treatment for any patient.
3. Perform any service that is not specifically authorized by the provisions of chapter 634 of NRS.
4. Perform any service that is not specifically authorized by the terms of his certificate.
5. Perform a chiropractic adjustment.
6. Perform any service, except at the direction and under the direct supervision of a licensee.
7. Bill independently of the supervising licensee for any services rendered.

DELETIONS:

Delete: ~~[NAC 634.118 "Chiropractor's assistant for massage" defined. (NRS 634.030) "Chiropractor's assistant for massage" means a person who holds a certificate as a chiropractor's assistant for massage pursuant to NRS 634.123 and the provisions of this chapter.]~~

Delete: ~~[NAC 634.122 "Massage" defined. (NRS 634.030) "Massage" means the application of manual pressure to the muscular structures and soft tissues of the human body for therapeutic purposes, including, without limitation:~~

- ~~—1. Effleurage (stroking);~~
- ~~—2. Petrissage (kneading);~~
- ~~—3. Tapotement (percussion);~~
- ~~—4. Tapping;~~
- ~~—5. Compression;~~
- ~~—6. Vibration;~~
- ~~—7. Friction; and~~

~~—8. Triggerpoint therapy.~~

~~—The term does not include diagnosis, adjustment or manipulation of any articulations of the body or spine or the mobilization of articulations by a thrusting force.]~~

Delete: ~~[NAC 634.346 Performance of ancillary service of massage. (NRS 634.030, 634.125)~~

~~—1. A person who desires to perform the ancillary service of massage must obtain a certificate as a chiropractor's assistant for massage.~~

~~—2. A person who holds a certificate as a chiropractor's assistant for massage may perform only the ancillary service of massage unless he also holds a certificate as a chiropractor's assistant.]~~

Delete: ~~[NAC 634.387 Restoration of suspended license. (NRS 634.030, 634.130) If the license of a licensee is automatically suspended pursuant to subsection 5 of NRS 634.130, the licensee must, in addition to paying the fees for reinstatement and renewal as required by that provision, apply to the Board to have the license restored.]~~

Delete: ~~[NAC 634.440 Referral bureaus. (NRS 634.030)~~

~~—1. Except as otherwise provided in this section, a referral bureau for licensees must have at least five licensees who do not have a fiduciary relationship with each other. A member of the referral bureau may represent no more than 20 percent of the licensees listed with the bureau. The Board will consider any extenuating circumstances which would prevent a referral bureau from complying with this subsection.~~

~~—2. Unless there is a request for a licensee who uses a specific technique, is located in a specific area or is able to speak a certain language, all referrals by a bureau must be made on a rotating basis so that each licensee listed with the bureau receives the same number of referrals.~~

~~—3. The telephone number for the referral bureau must not be the number of the office, residence or answering service of any of the licensees listed with the bureau.~~

~~—4. The name of the referral bureau must not be deceptively similar to the name of:~~

~~—(a) A licensee who is listed with the bureau;~~

~~—(b) A chiropractic office;~~

~~—(c) A research association; or~~

~~—(d) A chiropractic association.~~

~~—5. A record of all referrals must be made by the bureau and maintained by it for at least 1 year after the referral is made. The record must include, without limitation, the date and time of the referral, the name and address of the person referred, and the name of the licensee to whom the person was referred. The record must be made available upon request for inspection to any licensee listed with the bureau and must be submitted to the Board within 30 days after the end of each quarter of the calendar year.~~

~~—6. A referral bureau shall:~~

~~—(a) File a letter of application with the Board for its approval which properly identifies the referral bureau, its structure and its members.~~

~~—(b) Report to the Board any change in the membership of the referral bureau within 15 days after the change occurs.]~~